Yllage 05— Village Board Meeting
& e Monday, July 20, 2020
’ [ 50 p

e

LOCATION OF MEETING: VIRTUAL GOTO MEETING

MEETING ID NUMBER: 315-504-181 CALL IN: 1 866-899-4679 (toll free)

MEETING LINK: https:/global.gotomeeting.com/join/315504181

AGENDA

Call to Order, Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Action on Minutes from the July 6, 2020 Village Board Meeting.
Public Comments (comments limited to 3 minutes per person).

e wN e

New Business:
a. Discussion and Possible Action on Lights for Rock Buoys.
b. Discussion and Possible Action on Recommendation from Community Betterment Regarding Purchasing
Radar Sign.
c. Discussion and Possible Action Approving Resolution 2020-09 Amending the 2020 Budget for Lakeview
Park Construction Project.
d. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Payment Request #2 from Oostburg Concrete in the Amount of
$42,626.78.
6. Old Business:
a. Discussion and Possible Action on Personnel Committee’s Recommendation to Approve the Final Copy of
the Employee Handbook.
7. Consent Agenda:
a. Approval of bills: General Fund: $136,023.10; Water: $177.74; Sewer: $30,330.15; Payroll: $21,012.82.
b. Approval of Operator License Applications for: Christopher Bunge, Ronda Zahow, Heather Gasbarro,
April Turner (new applicants are in bold)
8. Staff and committee reports:
a. Director of Public Works

b. Committees
c. President

9. Adjourn

Items on the Agenda may be taken out of order as listed.

W Open Meeting Law (Wis. Stat. 19.83(2) and 19.84(2)) In general, the open meetings law grants citizens the right to attend and observe open
session meetings of governmental bodies, but does not require a governmental body to allow members of the public to speak or actively
participate in the body’s meeting. A governmental body is free to determine for itself whether and to what extent it will allow citizen participation
at its meetings. The Board may not take formal action on a subject raised in the public comment period, unless that subject is also identified in the

meeting notice.

96 Russell Drive, P.O. Box 344, Random Lake, Wl 53075
Telephone: (920) 994-4852 Facsimile: (920) 994-2390 Website: randomlakewi.com



Vittage Of 7 | Village Board Meeting Minutes

, July 6,2020
[\ RANDOM
LAKE

1. Call to Order, Roll Call: President Robert McDermott called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. Trustees present
included Mark Bichler, Elizabeth Manian, Eric Stowell, Michael San Felippo, and Blaine Werner. Trustee Barbara
Ruege was absent. Also in attendance were Public Works Director Joe Huiras and Deputy Clerk Lisa Gillette. Also
present was John Rassel, Gary Feider, and Bill Goehring.

Pledge of Allegiance: The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Action on Minutes from the June 15, 2020 Village Board Meeting and June 23, 2020 Special Board Meeting:
Trustee Stowell made a motion to approve the June 15, 2020 minutes as presented. Trustee San Felippo seconded
the motion. Motion carried, 6-0. Trustee Bichler made a motion to approve the June 23, 2020 special board
meeting minutes as presented. Trustee Stowell seconded the motion. Motion carried, 6-0.

Public Comments: None

5. New Business:

a. Discussion and Possible Action on Architectural Review/Planning Commission’s Recommendation to
Approve Plans for a new Home located at 192 East Shore Drive for Steinke Builders: Trustee Stowell
made a motion to approve the new home plans as recommended by the architectural review/planning
commission. Trustee Manian seconded the motion. Motion carried, 6-0.

b. Discussion and Possible Action on Architectural Review/Planning Commission’s Recommendation to
Approve Plans for a sun room at a home located at 88 Evergreen Drive for Ron Schuessler: Trustee
Bichler made a motion to approve the new home plans as recommended by the architectural
review/planning commission. Trustee Manian seconded the motion. Motion carried, 6-0.

c. Discussion and Possible Approval of Resolution 2020-08 relocating the Village of Random Lake Voting
Location for the August 11" and November 3™ Election to the Random Lake Fire Station: Trustee
Stowell made a motion to approve resolution 2020-08 relocating the voting location to the fire station
for August and November. Trustee Bichler seconded the motion. Motion carried, 5-0 with Trustee
Werner recused himself.

d. Discussion and Possible Action on the Purchase of Five Composite Picnic Tables & Garbage Cans for
Lakeview Park: Trustee Werner made a motion to approve the purchase of five composite picnic tables
and garbage cans for Lakeview Park. Trustee Stowell seconded the motion. Motion carried, 6-0.

e. Discussion and Possible Action on Privacy Fence/Trees on the Lakeview Park Overflow Lot: Trustee
Stowell made a motion to authorize Bob McDermott to obtain prices. Trustee Manian seconded the
motion. Motion carried, 6-0.

6. Old Business:

a. Discussion and Possible Action on Personnel Committee’s Recommendation to Approve the Final Copy
of the Employee Handbook: Trustee San Felippo made a motion to table the employee handbook.
Trustee Werner seconded the motion. Motion carried, 6-0.

7. Consent Agenda:

a. Approval of bills: General Fund: $67,131.44; Water: $4,042.44; Sewer: $13,567.25; Payroll: $15,481.86.

b. Sheboygan County Sheriff’s Department Monthly Report for June 2020.

c. Approval of New Operator License Applications for: Amy Donner, April Crosby, Sampo Hall, Nancy
Bunge, Kathy Kopping, & Amy Schmit (new applicants are in bold)

d. Approval of Peddler’s Permit for What’s the Scoop



Trustee Bichler made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Trustee Stowell seconded the motion. Motion carried,

6-0.

8. Staff and committee reports:

d.

Director of Public Works: Joe Huiras gave an update on the storm sewer work on Carroll Street to the
main on Allen. The concrete pipe was brittle and needed replacement. WE Energies is working on
Grand Ave and Spring Street. Oostburg Concrete showed up last week Tuesday set some rebar and
worked today also, but they are fighting the weather and goal is to be done by this weekend. New
Piers are not here, maybe middle of the month. Cut summer help hours this week due to the heat.
Committees: Nothing

President: Farmers market will be operating July 18" and July 25". Fire Department is meeting later
this evening to reconsider the fireman’s picnic for 2020. There is a food stand request for Lakeview
Park; the woman is offering to operate it if the village would erect the building. Kathy Mole is pretty
familiar with this type of operation. McDermott does not feel this is the right time. Trustee Werner
also feels that this is not the right time but also who will take over the operation when Kathy Mole
wants to quit? Werner thinks there should be a contract for 10 years of operation. Trustee San Felippo
mentioned that it could take business away from local businesses. Trustee Bichler thinks a fall
presentation would be more appropriate.

9. Adjourn: Meeting adjourned at 6:57 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Joe Huiras

Public Works Director



7/15/2020 Cart contents

LAKE

LITE.COM

|l

,,5:}
£~
e
|+

Home / Cart Contents

Cart Contents

Continue Shopping

Clear Cart

Frocead To Crackout

Solar Marine Light @
CODE: LL-SML-WHITE

LED Color 9:

White LED

LED llluminating Color

$129.95
3
$389.85 M’“

https://www.lakelite.com/cart/ 1/4



7/15/2020 Cart contents

Solar llluminating Buoy (]

Buoy Label 9: B

Danger Rocks v

Select Buoy Label

$549.95

$1,649.85

os—
I
i i
i g,
o |

https://www.lakelite.com/cart/ 2/4



7/15/2020 Cart contents

®
ol b
=

HO

s .-JF:
s
Regulatory Buoy with Solar Navigational Light @

Buoy Label 9: *

Danger Rocks v

Select Buoy Label

Solar Light LED Color 9: *

White LED v

LED llluminating Color

$549.95

$1,649.85

Certificate or promo code

Subtotal $3,689.55

Shipping Cost " CALCULATE @ F
le

https://www.lakelite.com/cart/

3/4



RESOLUTION No. 2020-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE OF RANDOM LAKE,
WISCONSIN AMENDING THE 2020 BUDGET

WHEREAS, a budget for the 2020 calendar year was originally adopted on November
18, 2019; and

WHEREAS, municipal budgets, due to unexpected revenues or expenditures, must be
amended to accurately reflect those unexpected revenues and expenditures; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Village to amend the budget to accurately
reflect the changes incurred throughout the year;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE BOARD OF THE VILLAGE
OF RANDOM LAKE, WISCONSIN, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.  Certain line items of the 2020 Annual Budget of the Village of Random
Lake are amended and adopted as shown in the following changes:

Current Amended
Fund 100 General Fund ...............c...ocoo0. $1,310,124 $1,435,751
Debit Credit

100-00-57220-000-000 Lakeview Park Exp. $125,627.04
100-00-11580-001-000 Lakeview Park Savings $125,627.04

ADOPTED BY ORDER OF THE VILLAGE BOARD AT A REGULAR MEETING
THEREOF ON THE DAY OF 20

Approved:

Robert McDermott, Village President

Attest:
Jo Ann Lesser, Village Clerk/Treasurer




ECEIVE

JUL 1 4 2000 Invoice

Oostburg Concrete Products In BY: 54085
110 S Business Park Drive
PO Box 700188

Oostburg, WI 53070-0188 Date 7/13/2020

Phone # 920-564-3341
Fax # 920-564-2325

Contractor: Job Site

TNT ENTERPRISES Random Lake
W5992 CREEK ROAD 56 Russel Dr
RANDOM LAKE, WI 53075 Random Lake

Product Name; Qty U/M Subtotal
CONCRETE FLATWORK
as per estimate #23243A
Concrete slab - 6" thick 4,400 sf
Grade Beam - 24" high x 24" wide 207 ft
Rebar #4 (1/2" diameter) 6,300 ft
Sealer 4,400 sf $39,315.02
Extra: 6" slab 528 sf $2,782.00
Extra: Grade beam 14 ft $ 529.76

_ a5
. 5aU‘w»
b
L4 bev'e
4
> ‘ / 0
2|61

Thank you for your business. Total $42.626.78




Draft #6 — July 6, 2020

VILLAGE OF RANDOM LAKE
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

- 1

‘. .}Q; . R .-'..-.r— .

,I

\
!
' =ity

'




Table of Contents

Title Page #
Introduction 3
Changes In Policy 3
Employment 3
Organizational Structure 3
Non-Discrimination 4
Professional & Ethical Conduct 4
Standards of Conduct 5
Employee Medical Examinations 6
Immigration Law Compliance 6
Employment Classification 7
Outside Employment 7
Grievance Procedure 7
Employment Status 9
Personal Appearance and Demeanor 9
Attendance/Punctuality 10
Personnel Files 10
Employee Performance Review 10
Standard Workweek 11
Operating Hours 11
Employee Breaks 11
Timecards 12
Pay Procedures 12
Overtime 12
Village Board/Committee Meetings 13
Employee Discipline 13
Employee Termination 13
Safety 14
Employee Relations 15
Supplies/Expenditures 16
Uniforms 16
Wage or Salary Increases 16
Absence Without Notice 16
Harassment & Retaliation-Free Workplace 17
Violence In The Workplace 17
Tobacco, Electronic Cigarettes, and Vaporizers 18
Drug-Free Workplace 18
Telephone/Internet/Email Use 18
Cell Phones 19
Email/Voicemail 19
Benefits and Services 20
Village Issued Credit Cards 25
Tax Exempt Status 25
 Social Media Policy 25
Business Travel Expenses 26
Mileage Reimbursement 26
Employee Handbook Receipt 30

Page | 2




INTRODUCTION

This handbook is designed to acquaint you with the Village of Random Lake and provide you with
information about working condition, benefits, ad policies affection your employment. We expect each
employee to read this Employee Handbook carefully, as it is a valuable reference for understanding your
job and the Village. The policies outlines in this Employee Handbook should be regarded as
management guidelines only, which in a growing municipality will require changes from time to time.
The Village retains the right to make decision involving employment as needed in order to operate in a
manner that is beneficial to the employees and the Village Residents.

The information contained in this Employee Handbook applies to all employee of the Village of Random
Lake. The policies described in this handbook are considered a condition of continued employment.
However, nothing this handbook alters an employee’s status. The contents of this Employee Handbook
shall not constitute nor be construed as a promise of employment or as a contract between the Village
and any of its employees. This handbook is a summary of our policies, which are presented here only as
a matter of information.

CHANGES IN POLICY

This employee handbook supersedes all previous employee handbooks and memos that may have been
issued from time to time on subjects covered in this handbook. However, since our Village is subject to
change based on the bylaws that govern the State of Wisconsin, we reserve the right to interpret,
change, suspend, cancel, or dispute with or without notice all or any part of our policies, procedures,
and benefits at any time. We will notify all employees of these changes. Changes will be effective on
the dates determined by the Village, and after those dates all superseded policies will be null.

Only the Village Board has the authority, on majority vote, to change policies. No individual board
member, official, or department head has the authority to change policies at any time.

EMPLOYMENT

A potential employee enters into employment with the Village voluntarily, and is free to resign at any
time for any reason or no reason. Similarly, the Village of Random Lake is free to conclude its
relationship with any employee at any time or any reason or no reason.

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

Employees of the Village of Random Lake are employees under the general direction of the Village
Board. The Village Board, with a majority vote of its members, directly approves the hiring, supervision
and termination of Department Heads and Officers. The Village Board also approves the hiring and

Page | 3



termination of full time employees. Department Heads are responsible for the supervision of full times
employees as well as the hiring, supervision, and termination of part time and seasonal employees.

Village
Board
Clerk Director of
Treasurer Public Works
Deputy Public Works Water Seasonal &
Clerk Treasurer Laborers Wastewater Part Time
NON-DISCRIMINATION

The Village of Random Lake is an Equal Opportunity Employer. The Village will not tolerate
discrimination on the basis of age, race, color, religion, disability, marital status, gender, sexual
orientation, national origin, ancestry, citizenship status, genetic information, arrest record or conviction
record, veteran or military status, or off-duty use of lawful products. The Village of Random Lake will
make reasonable accommodations for qualified individuals with known disabilities unless doing so
would result in an undue hardship. This policy of non-discrimination governs all aspects of employment,
including selection, job assignment, compensation, discipline, termination, and access to benefits and
training.

Employees with questions or concerns about discrimination in the workplace are encouraged to bring
these issues to the attention of their supervisor. Employees can raise concerns and make reports
without fear of reprisal. Anyone found to be engaging in unlawful discrimination will be subject to
disciplinary action, including termination of employment.

PROFESSIONAL & ETHICAL CONDUCT

Public Service as an employee of the Village of Random Lake is a privilege and not a right. Being an
employee of the village places you in a heightened position of trust and responsibility. Therefore, it is
important that you fully understand the emphasis the village places on maintaining the public’s trust in
the village and its employees.

The Village expects that you will conduct yourself, personally and professionally, in a manner that will
help maintain that trust. The following are acts or actions that are incompatible with the public interest
and compromise public trust in the integrity of village employees and their official actions.

Page | 4



¢ Bribery — No employee may directly or indirectly accept or offer to accept any property or any
personal advantage, pursuant to an understanding that the employee will act in a certain
manner and/or do or not to do any act in violation of the employees, lawful duties.

e Insubordination — No employee may intentionally fail or refuse to perform a known mandatory,
nondiscretionary, ministerial duty of the employee’s office or employment within the time or in
the manner required by law.

® Abuse of Power — No employee may commit an act which the employee knows is in excess of
their lawful authority or which the employee knows is forbidden by law to do in his or her
official capacity.

¢ Fraud — No employee may make an entry in an account or record book or return, certificate,
report or statements which in a material respect the employee intentionally falsifies.

e Use of Public Property — No public officer or employee shall use or permit the use of village
vehicles, equipment, materials or property for personal conveniences or profit, except when
such services are available to the public general or are provided as village policy.

e Delinquencies of Village Accounts — As non-payment of Village of Random Lake accounts has
direct impact on increasing the costs of providing services to our residents, no employee may
have an account with the Village of Random Lake in a delinquent status. If an employee is
unable to make an account payment in full, they must contact Village Hall and enter into a
deferred payment agreement (DPA). A deferred payment agreement consists of a down
payment, and installment payments to be made or agreed upon dates until the account is paid
in full. DPA’s also must be kept in current status.

e Conflict of Interest — No employee may engage in any business transaction with the village or
have a direct or indirect financial or other personal interest which is incompatible with the
proper discharge of their official duties or will tend to impair their independence, judgement or
action in the performance of official duties.

e Perjury — Under Oath or affirmation, no employee may make a false material statement which
the person does not believe to be true, in any matter, cause, action, or proceeding before any
board or committee.

Any violations of the items in this section will be referred to the Finance and/or Personnel Committee
for appropriate action.

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

High ethical standards among Village employees are essential to the conduct of good representative
government. A Code of ethics for public employees will help them avoid conflicts, improve standards of
public service and strengthen the confidence of Village of Random Lake residents in their public
employees.

Page | 5



While not intended to list all the forms of behavior that are considered unacceptable in the workplace,
the following are examples of rule infractions or misconduct that may result in disciplinary action,
including termination of employment.

e Theft or inappropriate removal or possession of property;

o Falsification of timekeeping records;

e  Working under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs;

e Possession, distribution, sale, transfer, or use of alcohol or illegal drugs in the workplace;

e Fighting or threatening violence in the workplace;

e Negligence or improper conduct leading to damage of village-owned or resident’s property;

e [nsubordination or other disrespectful conduct;

e Violation of safety or health rules;

e Sexual or other unlawful or unwelcome harassment;

e Excessive absenteeism or any absence without notice;

e Unauthorized use of telephones or other company —owned equipment for purposes other than
business;

e Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information;

e Violation of personnel policies; and

e Unsatisfactory performance or conduct.

EMPLOYEE MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS

To help ensure that employees are able to perform their duties safely, medical examinations may be
required.

After an offer has been made to an applicant entering a designated job category, medical examination
may be performed at the Village of Random Lake’s expense by a health professional of the Village of
Random Lake’s choice. The offer of employment and assignment to duties is contingent upon a
satisfactory completion of the exam and a determination by the Village of Random Lake and its
examining physicians that the applicant is capable of performing the essential functions of the positon
that has been offered, with or without reasonable accommodation.

IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE

The Village of Random Lake employs only United States citizens and those non-U.S. citizens authorized
to work in the United States in compliance with the immigration Reform and Contro! Act of 1986.

Each new employee, as a condition of employment, must complete the Employment Eligibility
Verification Form |-9 and present documentation establishing identity and employment eligibility.

Page | 6



Former employees who are rehired must also complete the form if they have not completed an I-9 with
the village within the past three years or if their previous I-9 is no longer retained or valid.

EMPLOYMENT CLASSIFICATION

The Village of Random Lake recognizes the following classifications for purposes of compensation and
benefits:

1. Full-time — employees regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 32 hours per week. Full-time
employees are eligible for benefits as described herein.

2. Part-time —employees regularly scheduled to work fewer than 32 hours per week. Part-time
employees are not eligible for benefits, except as specifically provided herein.

3. Casual —employees hired to work for a particular purpose, such as on a specific assignment or
for a specific period of time, after which it is, understood that their employment will end (unless
terminated earlier by the Village). Casual employees may work full or part-time, but are not
entitled to benefits.

4. Temporary — employees may be hired directly by the Village, or through a third party such as an
employment agency.

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

Employees of the Village of Random Lake shall not engage in any outside employment that interferes or
conflicts with the ability of the employee to perform his or her duties in an efficient and unbiased
manner as determined by their supervisor.

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

This policy is intended to comply with Section 66.0509, Wis. Stats., and provides a grievance procedure
addressing issues concerning workplace safety, discipline and termination. This policy applies to all
employees covered under Section 66.0509, Wis. Stats., other than police and fire employees subject to
Section 62.13(5), Wis. Stats. An employee may appeal any level of discipline under this grievance
procedure. For purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply:

1. “Employee discipline” includes all levels of progressive discipline, but shall not include the
following items:
e Placing an employee on paid administrative leave pending an internal investigation;
e Counseling, meetings or their pre-disciplinary action;
e Actions taken to address work performance including use of performance improvement
plan or job targets;
e Demotion, transfer or change in job assignment; or

Page | 7



e Other personnel actions taken by the employer that are not a form of progressive
discipline.
“Employee termination” shall include action taken by the employer to terminate an individual’s
employment for misconduct or performance reasons, but shall not include the following
personnel actions:
e Voluntary quit;
e Layoff or failure to be recalled from layoff at the expiration of the recall period;
e Retirement;
e Job abandonment, “no-call, no show”, or other failure to report to work; or
e Termination of employment due to medical condition, lack of qualification or license, or
other ability to perform job duties.
“Workplace safety” is defined as conditions of employment affecting an employee’s physical
health or safety, the safe operation of workplace equipment and tools, safety of the physical
work environment, personal protective equipment, workplace violence, and training related to
same.

Any written grievance filed under this policy must contain the following information:

The name and position of the employee filing it;

A statement of the issue involved;

A statement of the relief sought;

A detailed explanation of the facts supporting the grievance;

The date(s) the event(s) giving rise to the grievance took place;

The identity of the policy, procedure or rule that is being challenged;

The steps the employee has taken to review the matter either orally or in writing, with the
employee’s supervisor; and

The employee’s signature and the date.

Steps of the Grievance Procedure
Employees should first discuss complaints or questions with their supervisor. Every reasonable effort
should be mad by supervisors and employees to resolve any questions, problems or misunderstandings

that have arisen before filing a grievance.

Step 1 — Written Grievance Filed with Department Head. The employee must prepare and file a written

grievance with the Department Head within five business days of when the employee knows, or should

have known, of the events giving rise to the grievance. The Department Head will investigate the facts
giving rise to the grievance and inform the employee of their decision, if possible within ten (10)
business days of receipt of the grievance. In the event the grievance involves the Department Head, the
employee may initially file the grievance with the Village President, who shall conduct the Step 1

investigation.

Page | 8



Step 2 — Impartial Hearing Officer. If the grievance is not settled at Step 1, the employee may request in
writing, within five (5) business days following receipt of the Department Head’s decision, a review by an
impartial hearing officer. The request shall be filed with the Village Clerk. The Village shall select the
impartial hearing officer. The impartial hearing officer shall not be a village employee. The impartial

hearing officer will determine whether the Village acted in an arbitrary and capricious manner. This
process does not involve a hearing before a court of law; thus, the rules of evidence will not be followed.
Depending on the issue involved, the impartial hearing office will determine whether a hearing is
necessary, or whether the case may be decided based on a submission of written documents. The
impartial hearing officer shall prepare a written decision.

Step 3 — Review by the Village Board. If the grievance is not resolved after Step 2, the employee or the

Department Head shall request within five (5) business days of receipt of the written decision from the
impartial hearing officer, a written review by the Village Board. The Village Board shall not take
testimony or evidence; it may only determine whether the impartial hearing officer reached an arbitrary
or incorrect result. The Village Board will inform the employee of its findings and decision in writing
within ten (10) business days of the Village Board’s decision. The Village Board shall decide the matter
by majority vote of members present and this decision shall be final and binding.

If the employee fails to meet the deadlines set forth above, the grievance will be considered resolved.

EMPLOYEMENT STATUS

Employees are classified as “exempt” or “non-exempt” for purposes of overtime compensation.

1. Non-exempt — employees who are paid on an hourly basis and are entitled to receive overtime
compensation for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) in a workweek or over eight (8) hours
in a workday.

2. Exempt —employees who are paid on a salary basis and perform certain “exempt” duties.
“Exempt” employees typically include Clerk/Treasurer, Public Works Director, Mangers, and
Department Heads. Exempt employees are not entitled to receive overtime compensation,
except as stated otherwise within this manual.

The Village will inform you of your employment classification and status during your orientation, and/or
in the event of a job change such as a promotion, transfer, etc., that affects your classification or status.

If you have any questions about your classification or status, please contact your Supervisor or the
Village Clerk/Treasurer.

PERSONAL APPEARANCE AND DEMEANOR

Discretion in style of dress and behavior is essential to the efficient operation of the Village. Employees
are therefore required to dress in appropriate business attire and behave in a professional, businesslike

Page | 9



manner. Employees should use judgment in their choice of work clothes and should remember to
conduct themselves at all times in a way that best represents themselves and the village.

ATTENDANCE/PUNCTUALITY

The Village of Random Lake expects that every employee will be regular and punctual in attendance.
This means being in the office, ready to work, at their starting time each day. Absenteeism and
tardiness places a burden on other employees and on the village.

If you are unable to report for work for any reason, notify your supervisor before your regular starting
times. You are responsible for speaking directly with your supervisor about your absence. In the case of
leaving a voice-mail, e-mail, or text message, a follow-up call must be made later that day.

Should undue tardiness become apparent, disciplinary action may be required.

PERSONNEL FILES

Employee personnel files include the following: job application, job description, resume, records of
participation in training events including certificates awarded, records of disciplinary action, and
documents related to employee performance reviews.

Personnel files are the property of the Village of Random Lake, and access to the information is
restricted. The Village Clerk/Treasurer shall be the keeper of all personnel files and will allow an
employee to access his or her own file only.

It is the responsibility of each employee to promptly notify the Village Clerk/Treasurer of any changes in
personnel data such as:

¢ Mailing address

e Telephone numbers

e Name and number of dependents

e Individuals to be contacted in the event of an emergency

e Any financial changes that may affect payroll

An employee’s personnel data should be accurate and current at all times.

EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Supervisors will conduct performance reviews with all regular full-time and regular part-time employees
annually on or about the end of August. Supervisors may conduct informal performance reviews more
often if they choose. The Clerk/Treasurer will conduct performance reviews of the office staff. The

Page | 10



Director of Public Works will conduct performance reviews of the DPW crew and Water/wastewater
staff. The Personnel Committee will conduct reviews of the Department Heads.

Performance reviews are designed for the supervisor and the employee to discuss their current job
tasks, encourage and recognize attributes, discussing ways in which the employee can improve their
skills, and discuss positive, purposeful approaches for meeting work-related goals.

STANDARD WORKWEEK

The standard workweek is 40 hours of work per week. In the computation of various employee benefits,
the employee workweek is considered to begin on Sunday at 12:01 a.m. through Saturday ending at
12:00 a.m.

OPERATING HOURS

VILLAGE HALL:
Village Hall is open for business from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except for holidays.

Emergencies such as severe weather, fires or power failures can disrupt village operations. During these
emergencies it may be necessary to close Village Hall. The decision to close Village Hall will be made by
the Clerk/Treasurer after conferring with the DPW Director and/or the National Weather Service.

Time off from scheduled work due to emergency closings will be unpaid for all non-exempt employees.
However, if employees would like to use paid time off they will be permitted to do so if the PTO is
available.

At times Village Hall may need to close to allow all office staff to attend training, conferences, or
meetings. The Village President shall approve any requests to close Village Hall for a non-emergency.

PUBLIC WORKS:
Public Works crew is open for business 6:00 a.m. to 2:30 p.m. Monday through Friday with the
exception of summer hours. Summer hours are Monday through Thursday 6:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. and
Fridays 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m., beginning the first full week after Memorial Day until the first full week
in November. Director of Public Works may change the summer work hours as needed.

EMPLOYEE BREAKS

Village office staff is not afforded breaks due to the work schedule.
Public Works crew (including water/wastewater) is afforded 2-15 minute paid breaks during the day and
1-30 minute unpaid meal breaks.

Page | 11



TIMECARDS

Timecards are required to be completed by each employee of the Village regardless of employee status.
Hours must be totaled and timecards must be signed and submitted to their supervisor on the Monday
following the end of the pay period. Department Heads are required to review and verify hours worked
for each employee in their department, a supervisor signature or initials must appear on the timecard
before processing. Department Heads will submit timecards from their department to the Village
Clerk’s office by noon (12:00 p.m.) on Monday following the end of the pay period for processing.

Under certain circumstances, timecards may be required to be submitted earlier than Monday (due to a
holiday or vacation), hours may be estimated for the remaining days of the pay period and will be
corrected on the following timecard.

PAY PROCEDURES

All hourly and salaried employees are paid on a bi-weekly {once every two weeks) basis. In the event
that a regularly scheduled payday falls on a holiday, employees will receive pay on the day prior to the
scheduled holiday.

Direct deposit is required for all employees as a condition of employment, regardless of employment
status. Pay will be deposited into the bank account(s) provided by the employee at hire and can be
changed as needed by contacting the Village Clerk/Treasurer. Paycheck vouchers will be emailed
(preferred) or can be picked-up in the Clerk/Treasurer’s office on payday, the paycheck will be available
in employee’s bank account on the regularly scheduled pay day.

There will be no pay advances to any employee for any reason.

OVERTIME

Employees may occasionally be asked to work beyond their normally scheduled hours or on their day
off, as needed and determined by the Village. All employees are expected and required to work
overtime when requested, unless excused by their supervisor or Village Board. Non-exempt employees
who are required (or permitted) to work overtime will receive overtime compensation or compensatory
time at the rate of time and a half their regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of eight (8)
hours in a work day, in accordance with the following guidelines:

1. All overtime must be approved in advance by the employee’s immediate supervisor,
2. “Hours worked” includes hours away from work due to vacation, sickness or holiday.

Page | 12



Call-in Pay
If a public works employee is authorized and required to return to the work site to perform vital services
at times other than normal working hours, they shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay at the rate
time and one-half (1%) or time and one-half (1 % ) for all hours worked, whichever is greater.
In addition, any hours actually worked on holidays (see list on page 23) shall be paid at double (2x) time
his/her regular rate of pay.

VILLAGE BOARD/COMMITTEE MEETINGS

All employees shall receive meeting pay for required attendance at Village Board and standing
committee meetings. Meeting pay is paid out at a maximum of quarterly but no less than once per year
completed in December. The rate of pay shall commence on January 1% and will be set by the Village
Board. All employees will receive the same rate for meeting pay.

EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE

It is expected that employees of the Village of Random Lake uphold to certain work rules and standards
of conduct as well as the code of ordinances of the village and state statutes of Wisconsin.

Discipline may result when an employee’s actions do not conform with generally accepted standards of
good behavior, when an employee violates a policy or rule, when an employee’s performance is not
acceptable, or when the employee’s conduct is detrimental to the interests of the village. Disciplinary
action may call for any of four steps:

1. Verbal warning

2. Written warning

3. Suspension (with or without pay)

4. Ortermination of employment
There may be circumstances when one or more steps are bypassed. Certain types of employee
problems are serious enough to justify either a suspension or termination of employment without going
through progressive discipline steps. The Village of Random Lake reserves the right, in its sole
discretion, to impose disciplinary action as may be appropriate to the particular circumstances.

EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION

Termination of employment is an inevitable part of personnel activity within any organization, and many
of the reasons for termination are routine. Examples of the most common circumstances of termination
of employment are:

e Resignation - voluntary employment termination initiated by an employee

e Termination - involuntary employment termination initiated by the Village of Random Lake

Page | 13



e Layoff - involuntary employment termination initiated by the Village of Random Lake for non-
disciplinary reasons.
The Village of Random Lake respectfully requests each employee to offer a two week resignation notice
to their supervisor, but understands that some unforeseen circumstances do not make this possible. A
notice must be provided to the village in writing, and should also include the last day of working for the
village.

Any employee who terminates employment with the Village of Random Lake shall return all keys,
uniforms, and village issued equipment by the end of day on the last day of work. Employees may be
required to sign documents guaranteeing the return of all village owned materials. If materials are not
returned for any reason, the employee may be charged for the repair or replacement of the missing or
damaged materials. The employee may be notified at the time of settlement if there are any pending
charges, a written detailed account of the missing or damaged materials will be mailed prior to final
settlement of hours. Any damage or repair costs will be deducted from the final paycheck. Final
settlement of an employee’s pay will be mailed to the address on record.

SAFETY

The Village of Random Lake provides information to employees about workplace safety and health
issues through regular internal communication such as:

e Training sessions

e Staff meetings

e Memorandums

e Other written communications
Each employee is expected to obey safety rules and exercise caution and common sense in all work
activities. Safety equipment when required will be provided by the Village of Random Lake. Safety
Equipment is the property of the Village of Random Lake and is to be returned to the Village upon
termination of employment.

Employees must immediately report any unsafe conditions to their supervisor. Employees who violate
safety standards, cause hazardous or dangerous situations, or fail to report, or, where appropriate,
remedy such situations, may be subject to disciplinary action including termination of employment.

In the case of an accident that results in injury, regardless of how insignificant the injury may appear,

employees should notify their supervisor and the Village Clerk immediately, injury in the workplace
paperwork may need to be filled out, especially if an employee seeks medical attention at any time.

Page | 14



EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

Leave of Absence

The Village of Random Lake recognizes that illnesses, injuries, family matters, personal problems or
other circumstances may sometimes require employees to miss work for a prolonged period of time. In
order to allow employees to address these issues in a manner that does not unduly disrupt our
operations, we have developed a leave of absence policy which provides extended leave to eligible
employees in accordance as provided below.

Eligibility
In order to be eligible for a leave of absence, an employee must have been employed by the Village for
at least one (1) year.

Procedure
An employee who expects or needs to be absent from work for more than three (3) consecutive work
day must submit a written request for a leave of absence at least 30 days prior to the commencement of
the requested leave. This will allow the Village to arrange for the necessary approval and find someone
to perform your work during your absence, if needed. If the need for the leave is unforeseeable or
advance notice is not practical, your request should be made as soon as practicable.

Employees who become ill outside of work must call their immediate supervisor as soon as possible to
inform him/her of your absence from work that day. Any employee who is ill and misses work for more
than 3 consecutive days must obtain a written notice from your doctor excusing you from work duties.
As such, an employee who is out of work on a doctor’s excuse must supply a written release from the
doctor in order to return to work. Based on information provided by the employee and their doctor,
their supervisor may modify the employee’s job to ensure the safety of the employee, co-workers, and
the public until such time that the health-related issue or medication no longer affects the employee’s
performance.

Please note, all disclosure of health and/or medication use will remain strictly confidential in accordance
with HIPPA regulations.

In the event an employee requires medical attention, whether injured or becoming ill while at work and
the employee is unresponsive or unable to communicate the emergency contact must be notified
immediately by the senior employee on the scene. Ifit is necessary for the employee to be seen by a
doctor or go to the hospital, a supervisor will arrange transport for the employee to the appropriate
facility. A physician’s “return to work” notice may be required.

Page | 15



SUPPLIES/EXPENDITURES

Employees shall follow the Village of Random Lake finance and purchasing policy when making
purchases, signing or verbally approving contracts and agreements with vendors, and accepting goods
and services on behalf of the Village of Random Lake.

Whenever possible, purchase should be made through invoice billing or an Village of Random Lake
credit cards. In the event an employee should need to pay for an authorized expenditure with their
personal cash or credit card they must submit a receipt to the appropriate Department Head.
Department Heads will submit approved receipts to the Village Clerk/Treasurer for review.

The Village of Random Lake provides vehicies for use of employees during the course of their duties.
Employees are encouraged to use a village vehicle for all work related travel. In the event that a village
vehicle is not available for work related travel, employees will be reimbursed at the federal mileage rate
for travel in their personal vehicle. Employees will be required to fill out an expense reimbursement
form and must be approved by their supervisor before being submitted to the village board meeting.

UNIFORMS

Uniforms will be provided by the Village of Random Lake and required to be worn on duty. Uniform
purchases and replacement must be approved by the appropriate Department Head and will be based
upon the uniform allowance approved within the current budget. Employees may wear their uniforms
to and from work, but shall not wear uniforms for personal use. These uniforms are the property of the
Village of Random Lake and are to be returned to the village upon termination of employment.

The Village of Random Lake also provides to full-time Public Works employees a work boot allowance up
to $250 in a calendar year. Employees who choose to take advantage of the allowance are required to
submit the receipt to the Clerk/Treasurer’s office for reimbursement.

WAGE OR SALARY INCREASES

Each employee’s hourly wage or annual salary will be reviewed by the Personnel Committee during the
budgeting process each year. The Personnel Committee will make wage and salary recommendations to
the Finance Committee for consideration of the annual budget. The Finance Committee will
recommend wage and salary adjustments to the Village Board for final budget approval. Increases will
be determined on the basis of adherence to village policies and procedures as well as annual budget
considerations.

Page | 16



ABSENCE WITHOUT NOTICE

When you are unable to work due to illness or an accident, please notify your supervisor. This will allow
the Village to arrange for temporary coverage of your duties, and helps other employees to continue
work in your absence. If you do not report for work and the Village is not notified of your status, it will
be assumed after two consecutive days of absence that you have resigned, and you will be removed
from the payroll.

If you become ill while at work or must leave the office for some other reason before the end of the
workday, be sure to inform your supervisor of the situation.

HARASSMENT & RETALIATION-FREE WORKPLACE

The Village of Random Lake is committed to providing a work environment that is free of discrimination
and unlawful harassment including sexual harassment. Actions, words, jokes, or comments based on an
individual’s sex, race, ethnicity, age, religion, or any other legally protected characteristics will not be
tolerated.

If you believe you have been the victim of harassment or know of another employee who has, report it
immediately. The Village strictly prohibits retaliation against anyone who reports harassment or who
cooperated in the investigation of a harassment complaint.

Any supervisor who becomes aware of possible harassment should promptly advise the Village
President or President Pro Tem who will handle the matter in a timely and confidential manner.

VIOLENCE IN THE WORKPLACE

The Village of Random Lake will not tolerate violence, harassment or intimidation in and around the
workplace, or among individuals conducting Village business. Violence is defined to include, but is not
limited to: physical assault, aggressive behavior towards another individual, purposeful destruction of
Village property, intimidation through verbalized or implied threats, carry weapons of any kind in the
workplace, and destruction of another’s property. Reported acts or threats will be investigated as a
possible serious violation of Village policy. Any confirmed act or threat will be grounds for disciplinary
actions, up to and including immediate termination of employment.

Any employee who has been a recipient of a threat of violence or victim of an act of violence is to make
a report to their supervisor. The Village will investigate such reports and take action as appropriate to
the situation.

The Viilage additionally reserves the right to address any off-premises conduct involving violence,
threats of violence, harassment or intimidation that has or may have an impact on the workplace or an

Page | 17



employee. As acts of violence in the workplace may also be perpetrated by people from outside the
workplace, the Village requests any employee who feels an outside threat poses a risk to report such a
situation to their supervisor. The Village will assess the need for special safeguards or other
considerations.

TOBACCO, ELECTRONIC CIGARETTES, AND VAPORIZERS

The Village of Random Lake is committed to maintaining a tobacco-free work environment that ensures
the safety, health and efficient performance of all employees. In keeping with this intent, the use of
tobacco products and electronic cigarettes or similar vaporizers is prohibited throughout the workplace.
An electronic cigarette is defined as a battery-powered device that mimics cigarettes by turning
nicotine, flavor, and other chemicals into an aerosol that is inhaled by users. The use of an electronic
cigarette or similar vaporizer is called “vaping.” Smoking, vaping, or any use of a tobacco product by a
Village of Random Lake employee is prohibited during work hours or in village owned vehicles. During
approved break times, such activities can by conducted by employees in open areas designated by the
Village of Random Lake or within personal vehicles.

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

It is the policy and intent of the Village of Random Lake to maintain a drug-free workplace for all of its
employees and the public. Therefore, no employee shall report to work or be under the influence of
alcohol or illegal drugs during working hours. This policy includes any paid or unpaid lunch periods,
training sessions, and the working hours of conferences attended as a representative of the Village.

The sale, possession, transfer or purchase of illegal drugs while in the course and scope of employment
with the Village is also prohibited. Any employee found to have used, sold, distributed possessed, or
under the inftuence of illegal drugs or alcohol in the workplace, or otherwise failing to comply with any
drug & alcohol testing program and drug-free workplace requirements, may be subject to disciplinary
action up to and including the termination of employment.

TELEPHONE/INTERNET/EMAIL USE

The Village of Random Lake’s telephones, including village owned cell phones, and computer are
intended for the use of serving our residents and in conducting the Village’s business.

Personal usage of the village telephones or computers during business hours is discouraged except for
emergencies. All personal telephone calls should be kept brief to avoid congestion on the telephone
line. All personal email should be kept on a personal email account.

Employees may use the internet when appropriate to access information needed to conduct business of
the village. Employees may use e-mail when appropriate for village business correspondence.

Page | 18



Use of the internet must not disrupt operation of the village’s computer network. Use of the internet
must not interfere with an employee’s productivity. Employees are responsible for using the internet in
a manner that is ethical and lawful.

Internet and email messages when used with village property are public records and subject to open
records laws. The Village of Random Lake reserves the right to access and monitor all files and messages
on its systems.

If an employee is found to be deviating from this policy, he/she will be subject to disciplinary action.

CELL PHONES

The Village of Random Lake understands the necessity for employees to have cell phones while at work
in order to communicate with each other. While we understand the need for cell phones, we require
that certain guidelines be followed. All employees are expected to maintain a professional and
conscientious attitude while using cell phones during working hours. If employees require a cell phone
to perform their work during the course of the day, the Village will either issue a cell phone or reimburse
employees for the use of personal cell phones. The reimbursement amount for the use of a personal
cell phone shall be at the discretion of the Village Board.

All employees of the village that use a cell phone for performing their duties shall comply with
Wisconsin State laws regarding the use of cell phones while driving. It is imperative that the safety of
the employee as well as others is taken seriously.

Regardless of whether the cell phone is village-issued or a personal cell phone, use of the phone should
be kept to a minimum while at work. Employees should also convey this guideline with their family and
friends.

Any damage that may occur to the village-issued cell phones due to negligence of the user shall be the
responsibility of the user. Likewise, the Village will not assume any liability for personal cell phones that
are being used while at work.

EMAIL/VOICEMAIL

To promote economy and efficiency the Village of Radom Lake expects that all emails and voicemails
shall be checked regularly. Any messages must be responded to, if needed, in a timely fashion.

Employees should check email no less than twice per work day, or more often if possible. Email
accounts can be accessed from your work computers and cell phones or remotely via web access.
Employees should use caution when opening emails. Do not click links, open attachments, or reply
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Page | 19



Voicemail must be checked at minimum once daily during the work day. Village employees are required
to respond to voicemail messages within one business day. This policy shall be applied to both landline
based systems as well as village issued cell phones.

BENEFITS AND SERVICES

The Village of Random Lake offers a benefits program for its regular full-time employees. However, the
existence of these programs does not signify that an employee will necessarily be employed for the
required time necessary to qualify for the benefits included and administered through these programs.

Group Insurance
The Village of Random Lake offers the following Group Insurance Benefits:
e Health Insurance — eligible in 60 days from hire date
e Life Insurance — eligible first day of work
e Short Term Disability — eligible first day of work
e Dental Insurance — eligible 90 days from hire date
e Vision Insurance - eligible in 60 days from hire date
e Health Reimbursement Account - eligible first day of work

The employee is required to sign up or waive their right to coverage upon hiring; there is a 30 day open
enroliment period for new employees. The employee will become eligible for group insurance starting
on the first day of the month after the waiting period ends. For example, if your start date is January
10™ you will be covered for health insurance on April 1.

The Village covers 87% of health insurance premiums and the employee covers 13%. Dental insurance,
life and short-term disability insurance is covered 100% by the Village. Vision insurance is 100% covered
by the employee. All employee responsible coverages are deducted from bi-weekly paychecks, with the
exception when there is a third payroll of the month, there will be no withholdings from the third
paycheck of the month.

COBRA Coverage
Employees have a right to continue health insurance coverage after termination of employment and
under other circumstances. Detailed information about your COBRA rights is available upon request
from the Village Clerk/Treasurer.

Workers’' Compensation Insurance
The Village of Random Lake provides a comprehensive worker’s compensation insurance program
consistent with Wisconsin Employment Laws, at no cost to employees. This program covers any injury
or illness sustained in the course of employment that requires medical, surgical, or hospital treatment.

Page | 20



The amount and duration of payment depend on the nature of the injury or iliness. Subject to
applicable legal requirements, Workers’ Compensation Insurance provides benefits after a short waiting
period or, if the employee is hospitalized, immediately.

Wisconsin Retirement Fund
All Village of Random Lake employees who were hired prior to July 1, 2011 and are anticipated to work
600 hours or more in a year will be automatically enrolled in the Wisconsin State Retirement Fund
(WRS). If the employee’s date of hire occurred on or after July 1, 2011 the employee will automatically
be enrolled in the WRS if they are anticipated to work 1200 hours or more during the year. Employee
and employer contribution rates are determined by the WRS system and are subject to change based on
their ruling. Please contact the Clerk/Treasurer’s office for current rates.

Employers cannot exclude certain employee groups from participation. For example, seasonal or part-
time employees are not necessarily excluded based on employment type, they would be excluded based
on the number of hours worked in the calendar year. Employees cannot waive participation in the WRS
system unless they are an annuitant.

Employees who are retiring and wish to work for the village in any type of capacity (part-time or
seasonal) will be required to separate their employment for 75 days before being allowed to work. This
is a WRS ruling.

Deferred Compensation
The Wisconsin Deferred Compensation (WDC) program provides eligible employees with the
opportunity to invest a portion of their annual earnings on a tax-deferred basis to supplement
retirement income. Contributions are made on a bi-weekly basis through a payroll deduction. Limits of
contributions are based on IRS rules. The WDC program is voluntary and there is no contribution made
by the village. An employee may enroll in this program at any time; increase/decrease of contributions
can be changed at the discretion of the employee.

The WDC program also provides flexibility to designate all or a portion of your WDC deduction as a Roth
contribution. Roth 457(b) contributions are post-tax and are voluntary. Deductions are made bi-weekly
through the payroll process and an employee may increase/decrease deductions at any time. The
Village does not contribute to this type of program.

Health Reimbursement Account
All full-time employees are eligible for a Village of Random Lake health reimbursement account. The
village contracts with a third-party facilitator to oversee the program. Each full-time employee will
receive either $2,500 (family coverage) or $1,500 (single coverage) per year for plan approved
purchases, for instance reimbursement of co-pays, deductibles, or prescriptions. The amount of
reimbursement is based on an employee’s status.

Page | 21



Paid Time Off
Paid Time Off (PTO) is available to all regular full-time employees. Part-time employees PTO will be pro-
rated based on the number of hours worked in a calendar year.

PTO can be used in any increment as desired by the employee. PTO cannot be used until after 90 days
of service. Any changes must be approved by your immediate supervisor and the Village Board or
agreed upon at the time of hire.

Sick Leave
The Village of Random Lake offers sick pay to employees to promote the wellbeing of the individual and
other employees of the village. You are encouraged to use the sick pay for legitimate illnesses but also
for the health and well-being of your family. The village also promotes pro-active tendencies and
encourages employees to use their sick pay for wellness visits.

An employee is offered 80 hours of sick pay upon hiring. After initial hire, sick pay will accrue beginning
the following January 1%, at a rate of 4 hours per month. If an employee is hired in the last half of the
year, they will not accrue sick pay hours until the second January of employment. Employees can
accumulate no more than 480 hours or 12 weeks of sick pay. Employees who have reached the
maximum will not accrue additional sick pay until their account falis below the 480 hours. Employees
who are sick for more than three (3) days consecutively, must provide a doctor’s excuse for the leave of
absence and subsequently must provide a doctor’s approval to return to work.

There will be no payout of unused or accumulated sick leave time upon termination of employment.

Vacation Leave
The Village of Random Lake strongly believes that all employees need time away from work for purposes
of rest and relaxation or to address circumstances that may arise from time to time. The Village,
therefore, provides all full-time employees with annual vacations with pay in accordance with the
following schedule:

Less than One (1) to five (5) years of service Two (2) weeks’ vacation (80 hours)
Six (6) to ten (10) years of service Three (3) weeks’ vacation (120 hours)
Eleven (11) to fifteen (15) years of service Four (4) weeks’ vacation (160 hours)
Sixteen (16) to twenty (20) years of service Five (5) weeks’ vacation (200 hours)
Twenty-one (21) years of service and over Six (6) weeks’ vacation (240 hours)

*Newly hired employees are not eligible to schedule vacation time within the first six (6) months of
being hired. Hiring conditions may affect this policy.

Page | 22



Part-time employees vacation time is based on the number of hours worked in one week, for example, a
part-time employee working 30 hours per week will be allowed 30 hours of vacation time annually and
to be used within the calendar year.

The village vacation policy works as follows: Employees accrue eligibility for vacation as they work
during the year. This time then becomes available for use during the following calendar year.

Vacation is intended to provide the employee with time away from work for whatever reason, without
loss in pay (to the extent provided above). As such, vacation is administered on a “use it or lose it”
basis. This means that vacation is intended to be used. It is not paid out in lieu of time off or carried
over from year to year regardless of the reason, except at the sole discretion of the Village Board.

Department Heads are responsible for the smooth operation of their Department and will schedule
vacation, including their own time off, while ensuring the needs of the department are met. Employees
should submit their request for time off to the appropriate Department Head by using the village
approved request form. Vacation will be granted on a first-come first-serve basis so as not to interfere
with the workload at hand.

Requests for vacation should be made on the village approved request form and submitted at least two
(2) weeks in advance, unless circumstances prevent you from doing so (e.g., in the event you wish to use
vacation in connection with an iliness, injury, or family emergency). If two (2) weeks’ advance notice
cannot be given, the Village of Random Lake may be unable to grant your request. In any event, the
Village of Random Lake reserves the right to grant or deny any request for vacation based upon the
needs of the Village. Seniority will be the deciding factor in the event of two employees requesting time
off for the same time period. Approved request forms must accompany the timesheet in which the PTO
is taken.

All vacation is paid at the employee’s regular rate of pay. If a holiday observed by the Village falls within
a period of an employee’s scheduled vacation, the employee will not be “charged” vacation for the day
of the holiday.

Any unused or accrued vacation time at the end of employment with the Village will be paid out in one
lump sum with the final paycheck to employees who have been employed a minimum of one (1) year
and that have given a two (2) week notice of resignation. Employees who have been employed for less
than one (1) year or who do not provide proper notification will forfeit any unused vacation time.

Observed Holidays
Regular full-time employees will be eligible for the following holidays as of the first day of employment:
e New Year’s Day
e Memorial Day
e Good Friday

Page | 23



¢ Independence Day

e Labor Day

e Thanksgiving Day

e Day after Thanksgiving
e Christmas Eve Day

e Christmas Day

o New Year’s Eve Day

If a holiday falls on a Saturday the holiday will be observed on the preceding Friday, if the holiday falls
on a Sunday the holiday will be observed on the following Monday.

Holiday pay will be for eight (8) hours for a full day. In order to qualify for holiday pay the employee
must work the day before and the day after the holiday during the normal scheduled work week, unless
the employee has approved vacation time scheduled.

Funeral Leave
Village of Random Lake employees are eligible for a funeral leave of absence as needed. Employees
shall notify the appropriate department head of the need for leave as soon as they are able.

Paid time off for a funeral leave of absence will be granted to employees according to the following
schedule:

e Up to eight (8) hours a day up to three (3) days for the death of a member of their immediate
family (spouse, child, parent, step-parent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sibling, grandchild or
grandparent).

e Up to eight (8) hours a day up to two (2) days for the death of a member of their extended
family (aunt, uncle, cousin, brother-in-law, sister-in-law)

In the event of the death of a friend or acquaintance the employee will be allowed to take one (1) eight
(8) hour day off to attend the funeral but the employee will not be paid. The employee may choose to
use PTO (vacation time) for this leave of absence.

Military Leave
Employees will be granted a military leave of absence if necessary. Such employees will be
compensated for the difference between their current rate of pay and the amount of pay received for
their military duty based on a regular employee work week. No overtime, holiday, or paid time off will
be issued. All regular employees both full-time and part-time will be kept on the active payroll, and paid
with the normal bi-weekly payroll, until their civic duties have been completed. A copy of all associated
paperwork is required for the personnel file.

Page | 24



Jury and Witness Duty Leave
The Village of Random Lake complies with all applicable laws concerning jury and witness duty. Any (or
full-time only??) employee that is selected for jury duty will be given leave of absence for the time
necessary to serve on a jury and will be compensated at their regular rate of pay by the Village, provided
the pay the employee receives from the court for jury duty is turned over to the village. Pay for
expenses (such as mileage or meals) may be kept by the employee.

An employee selected for jury duty must notify their supervisor as soon as possible by providing the
dates and times needed. Proper documentation will be required for the personnel file.

An employee must indicate on his timecards the normally-scheduled hours he or she did not work as the
result of jury duty. Employees excused from jury duty or on call for jury duty but not actually impaneled
as a juror is expected to report to work as village employees.

BUSINESS TRAVEL EXPENSES

The Village of Random Lake recognizes that the skills and knowledge of its employees are critical to the
success of the village. The Village of Random Lake does stress the importance of attendance at any and
all education and training that is offered to have a better understanding of your job requirements. The
Village budgets each year for department heads and support staff to attend training for their specific
field of work offered by various entities. It will be up to the department head to oversee these
opportunities and offer to their staff when appropriate for attending such programs. Department heads
will coordinate with other staff for the potential leave of absence. Employees may also suggest training
opportunities to their supervisor for consideration. Best practice would be for department heads to
consider training expenses at budget time for the preceding year.

When approved, the actual costs of travel, meals, lodging, and other expenses directly related to
accomplishing business travel objectives will be reimbursed by the Village of Random Lake. Employees
are expected to limit expense to reasonable amounts.

The village will pay for any attendance fees associated with the training, any extracurricular events at
the conference will be at the employees’ own expense. If meals are not included in conference/training
the village will reimburse the employee for breakfast up to $15 per day, lunch up to $20 per day, if an
evening meal is not included the village will reimburse the employee for dinner up to $30 per day. The
tip for the server should be included in the approved maximum amount not to exceed 20%. The village
will not reimburse the employee for any alcohol purchases and should require a separate bill for
alcoholic beverages. A non-alcoholic beverage purchased with the meal is allowed to be submitted for
reimbursement.

It is very important that employees retain any receipts associated with training or meals, without a
receipt there will be no reimbursement.

Page | 25



MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT

The village will pay the employee mileage for all village business when required to use their personal
vehicle. This does not include mileage to and from work each day. If an employee is required to attend
a village function after hours or on a weekend, mileage compensation must be approved by the village
board. Mileage is to be calculated to and from the location of the training at the federal reimbursement
rate (contact Village Clerk for the current rate), if a village vehicle is available for the employee to use to
attend the training this should be the employee’s first option. Mileage will also be calculated by the
shortest distance, for example, if an employee travels to Milwaukee for training and they leave from
home and it’s a 90 mile round trip but from the village office it’s only 80 miles, then the reimbursement
will be the shorter of the two calculations.

VILLAGE ISSUED CREDIT CARDS

The Village will have the bank issue credit cards for the department heads and the Village President.
These cards are to be secured when in your possession and not used for any personal purchases. The
village understands that accidents happen and a card could be lost, stolen, or damaged, if this should
happen; contact the Village Clerk/Treasurer immediately for the safety of the village’s account. If a new
card is required the Village Clerk/Treasurer will contact the bank to have a new one issued.

Employees making purchases with the village issued credit card must turn in the receipt to the
department head or the Clerk’s office for reconciliation of the account. The village does not pay late
fees or interest, it is very important that the receipt gets turned into the office upon completion of the
transaction.

TAX EXEMPT STATUS

The Village of Random Lake is tax exempt; therefore, any purchase made by an employee on behalf of
the village should ensure that there is no tax calculated in the payment. If a tax-exempt certificate is
required prior to purchase, contact the Village Clerk/Treasurer for the form. An Employee should make
every effort to use vendors where the village has already established a purchasing account or set up in
advance with the vendor to remove the tax from the purchase.

Page | 26



SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY

Purpose
This Social Media Policy (“Policy”) establishes guidelines for the establishment and use of social media
sites as a means of conveying information to members of the public by the Village of Random Lake
(Village”).

The intended purpose of the Village social media sites is to distribute information about their respective
missions, meetings, activities and current issues to members of the public.

The Village has an overriding interest and expectation in protecting the integrity of the information
posted on Village social media sites and the content that is attributed to the Village, its officials, and its
employees.

Definitions
“Village social media sites” means social media sites which the Village establishes and maintains, and
over which it has control over all postings, except for advertisements or hyperlinks by the social media
site’s owners, vendors, or partners. Village social media sites shall supplement, and not replace, the
Village’s required notices and standard methods of communication.

“Electronic Media Officer” means the individual responsible for monitoring all social media sites
affiliated with the Village to ensure compliance with the Village’s Social Media Policy. This role shall be
carried out by the Village Clerk/Treasurer and/or his/her designee.

“Post” or “postings” means information, articles, pictures, videos or any other form of communication

posted on a social media site.

“Social Media Site” means content created by individuals, using accessible, expandable, and upgradable
publishing technologies, through and on the internet. Examples of social media include, but are not
limited to, Facebook, Twitter, Blogs, RSS, YouTube, LinkedIn, and Flickr.

General Policy
The village’s official website will remain the village’s primary means of internet communication.

The establishment of Village social media sites is subject to approval by the Electronic Media Officer.
Upon approval, Village social media sites shall bear the official name and/or official logo of the village.

Village social media sites shall clearly sate that such sites are maintained by the Village and that the sites
comply with the Village’s Media Policy.

Page | 27



Village social media sites should, whenever possible, link back to the Village’s official website for forms,
documents, online services and other information necessary to conduct business with the Village.

Village social media sites shall comply with usage rules and regulation required by the site provider,
including privacy policies.

Users of Village social media sites shall strictly adhere to applicable federal, state and local laws,
regulations and policies including, but no limited to, those laws related to open records and open
meetings.

Employees representing the Village on Village social media sites shall conduct themselves at all times as
a professional representative of the Village and in accordance with all Village policies.

It is the responsibility of each employee that utilizes social media to use sound judgement when posting
any content to social media and must never convey any sensitive or confidential information or portray
the Village in a poor manner.

If an employee identifies himself/herself in personal social media sites as an employee of or affiliated
with the Village, they must ensure content they are posting would be acceptable to the average
employee.

This policy is not meant to restrict an employee’s rights, but to maintain a standard assaciated with the
Village. A member is free to utilize social media as any other citizen, but that content should not be
sensitive or confidential Village information. If the employee wishes to post content that would NOT be
considered acceptable to the average Village employee, then their account, page, username, and/or any
other social media content should not be or show an association with the Village.

Employees setting up new Village social media sites shall utilize his/her authorized Village affiliated
contact information (address, phone, email, etc.) for account set-up, monitoring and access whenever
possible. In the event a Village social media site account must be set up using an existing personal
account, the registered administrator shall provide the Electronic Media Officer with applicable log-in
information, including but not limited to passwords, associated with the site(s). In the even this
applicable log-in information changes, the registered administrator shall provide updated applicable log-
in information to the Electronic Media Officer within 24 hours of changes being made.

Village social media sites my contain content, including but not limited to, advertisements or hyperlinks
over which the Village has no control. The Village does not endorse any hyperlink or advertisement

placed on Village social media sites by social media site’s owners, vendors, or partners.

The Village reserves the right to change, modify, or amend all or part of this policy at any time.

Page | 28



Content Guidelines
The Village shall have full permission and rights to any content posted on Village social media sites
including but not limited to photographs and videos.

Any images or videos taken by an employee of the Village are NOT the property of the
individual/employee. This includes any images and/or videos taken intentionally or inadvertently with
an employee’s personally owned cellular telephone or other imaging device.

Village employees shall not be compensated for time spent posing to social media sites after hours or
outside of their scheduled work hours.

Any employee authorized to post items on any Village social media site shall review, be familiar with,
and comply with the social media site’s use policies and terms and conditions as well as the Village’s
Social Media Policy.

Any employee authorized to post items on any Village social media site shall not express his or he own
personal views or concerns through such postings. Instead postings on any Village social media sites by
an authorized Village employee shall only reflect the views of the Village.

Postings must contain information that is freely available to the public and not be confidential as
defined by any Village policy, state law, and/or federal law.

Postings to Village social media sites shall NOT contain any of the following:

e Vulgar or abusive language or content;

e Sexual content or links to sexual content;

e Personal o obscene attacks of any kind;

e Threats or defamatory statements;

e Suggestions or encouragement of illegal activity;

e Content that promotes, fosters or perpetuates discrimination on the basis of race, creed, color,
age, religion, gender marital status, status with regard to public assistance, national origin,
physical or mental disability or sexual orientation;

e  Multiple successive off-topic posts by a single user or repetitive posts copied and pasted by
multiple users;

e Unsolicited proposals or other business ideas or inquiries;

e Infringe on copyrights or trademarks; or

e Content that would be restricted by local, state, or federal law.

Any content deemed non-compliant with this policy or otherwise not suited for Village social media sites
shall be addressed by selecting the “Hide” option when available.

Page | 29



The Village reserves the right to implement or remove any functionality of Village social media sites
when deemed appropriate by the Electronic Media Officer. This includes, but is not limited to,

information, articles, pictures, videos or any other form of communication that is posted on a Village
social media site.

Except as expressly provided in this Policy, accessing any social media site shall comply with all

applicable Village policies pertaining to communications and the use of the internet by employees,
including email content.

Page | 30



HANDBOOK RECEIPT

Please sign and date the Handbook receipt document and have a witness sign and date and submit
completed documents to the Village Clerk.

I have received, read and agree to abide by this employee handbook.

Employee Signature Date

Witnessed by:

Name Date

Page | 31



7/17/2020 10:43 AM Reprint Payroll Register Quick Page: 1
All Employees PAYRL
Check Date From: 7/07/2020 From Dept:
Thru: 7/20/2020 Thru Dept:
Name / Chk Beg End Dates Check Nbr Hours Earnings Deductions Net Pay
BECK, KAITLIN V446 19.50 165.75 12.68 153.07
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
CRAMER, HAILEY A v4a47 18.00 180.00 13.77 166.23
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
GILLETTE, LISA M v448 66.50 997.50 183.76 813.74
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
HORNING, ELISABETH v449 39.00 498.81 50.11 448.70
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
HUIRAS, JOSEPH v450 97.00 2,376.92 770.00 1,606.92
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
JACOBY, PHILIP V451 88.00 2,725.04 934.59 1,790.45
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
LESSER, JO ANN V452 80.00 2,461.54 727.66 1,733.88
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
MARTIN, SUZANNE V453 16.75 201.00 15.37 185.63
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
PAULUS, LUKE P V454 105.00 2,165.00 958.82 1,206.18
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
RAMMER, JACQUELINE v455 80.00 2,174.23 617.11 1,557.12
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
SCHUELLER, REBECCA L V456 84.00 1,538.46 403.39 1,135.07
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
SIEGEL, TYLER C v457 97.00 1,949.00 584.42 1,364.58
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
VIDEKOVICH COENEN, LYNN v458 17.75 177.50 55.56 121.94
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
WILL, KATRINA A v459 25,50 285.09 21.81 263.28
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
WROBLEWSKI, ELIZABETH V460 28.50 347.42 71.95 275.47
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
ABEL,, SONJA M 30128 22.50 180.00 13.77 166.23
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
ARNDT-MAAS, JOANNE 30129 2.00 36.06 2.76 33.30
7/16/2020 6/15/2020 7/12/2020
BINDER, HANNAH 30130 4.00 51.00 3.90 47.10
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
BROETZMANN, ISABELLA D 30131 34.50 431.25 40.58 3980.67
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020



7/17/2020 10:43 AM Reprint Payroll Register Quick Page: 2
All Employees PAYRL
Check Date From: 7/07/2020 From Dept:
Thru: 7/20/2020 Thru Dept:
Name / Chk Beg End Dates Check Nbr Hours Earnings Deductions Net Pay
MANIAN, GEORGE 30132 23.00 293.25 47.43 245.82
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
NOLL, CARLEE P 30133 48B.50 606.25 74.00 532.25
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
SCHIMBERG, MOLLY R 30134 48.50 606.25 74.00 532.25
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
SCHOLLER, TRISTAN M. 30135 43.50 565.50 99.79 465.71
7/16/2020 6/29/2020 7/12/2020
Totals: 1,089.00 21,012.82 5,777.23 15,235.59
Total Checks: 23 (Male: 6 Female: 17)



7/17/2020 12:41 PM In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL Page: 1
ALL Checks by Payee ACCT
POOLED CHECKING (COLLINS)
Dated From: 7/21/2020 From Account:
Thru: 7/21/2020 Thru Account:
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount
7/21/2020 Adell Co-Op Union
GLYPHOSATE-SUNPHOSATE
100-00-55240-230-000 PARKS-S,M,R,E 195.40
GLYPHOSATE-SUNPHOSATE 0180184
Total 195.40
7/21/2020 Advanced Disposal Services
Account #: B1011571
100-00-53620-390-000 GARBAGE -CONTRACT 5,564.79
Residential Co-collect trash (004) 486024
100-00-53620-390-001 RECYCLING~CONTRACT 1,892.16
Residential Co-collect recycling (005) 486024
Total 7,456.95
7/21/2020 Archer Mat Rental & Sales LLC
7/7/20
100-00-51600-230-000 VILLAGE HALL - S.M.R.E 21.83
7/7/20 30424
Total 21.83
7/21/2020 BMO Harris Bank N.A. - Payments
Acct. #: 5112770000017048
100-00-51422-390-000 TECHNOLOGY - S, M, R, E 215.82
100-00-51420-390-000 CLERKS OFFICE-SUPPLIES/EXP 96.30
100-00-56250-000-000 COMMUNITY BETTERMENT 494 .30
100-00-51101-390-000 VILLAGE BOARD-MILEAGE/EXPENSES 40.85
100-00-55220-230-000 LAKEVIEW PARK-S,M,R,E 97.72
100-00-51440-310-000 ELECTION SUPPLIES 81.65
100-00-53230-230-000 SHOP-S,M,R,E 390.85
Total 1,417.49

7/21/2020 CORSON, PETERSON & HAMANN S.C.
Prepare financial statements



7/17/2020 12:41 PM In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL Page: 2
ALL Checks by Payee ACCT
POOLED CHECKING (COLLINS)
Dated From: 7/21/2020 From Account:
Thru: 7/21/2020 Thru Account:
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount
100-00-51510-210-000 ACCOUNTING-PROF SERVICES 5,200.00
Prepare financial statements 9373
100-00-51510-210-000 ACCOUNTING-PROF SERVICES 350.00
TIF Report 9338
Total 5,550.00
7/21/2020 Department of Workforce Development
ACCT#693320-000-5
100-00-51420-135-000 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP 730.72
ACCT#693320-000-5 10174855
Total 730.72
7/21/2020 Diggers Hotline Inc.
Member 73901
100-00-52900-000-000 DIGGERS HOTLINE 51.20
June 200 6 73901
Total 51.20
7/21/2020 Doegnitz Ace Hardware
100-00-53230-230-000 SHOP-S,M,R,E 4.99
100-00-55211-230-000 BERTRAM PARK-S,M,R,E 30.00
100-00-55240-230-000 PARKS-S,M,R,E 20.07
660-00-54600-390-000 WWTP - Plant s, m, r, e 12.24
100-00-55220-230-000 LAKEVIEW PARK-S,M,R,E 110.85
100-00-51600-230-000 VILLAGE HALL - S.M.R.E 22.24
Total 200.39
7/21/2020 Eberhardt Plumbing & Heating Inc.
REPAIR AC, REPAIR BALL DIAMOND RESTROOM
660-00-54600-390-000 WWTP - Plant s, m, r, e 1,648.50
REPAIR AC, REPAIR BALL DIAMOND RESTROOM 25424
Total 1,648.50




7/17/2020 12:41 PM In Progress Checks -~ Full Report - ALL Page: 3
ALL Checks by Payee ACCT
POOLED CHECKING (COLLINS)
Dated From: 7/21/2020 From Account:
Thru: 7/21/2020 Thru Account:
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount
7/21/2020 Frontier Communications
Account: 920-994-9952-102915-5
660-00-54600-221-000 WWTP - telephone, internet 116.67
6/28/20-7/27/20
Total 116.67
7/21/2020 Hydro Corp
MCC 2 YRS 1/20-12/21
600-00-52410-390-000 Cross Connection Control 152.00
MCC 2 YRS 1/20-12/21 0057855-IN
Total 152.00
7/21/2020 KAPUR & ASSOCIATES INC.
Grand ave/Spring St.
100-00-57300-000-000 STREETS 4,245.50
Grand ave/Spring St. 103388
660-00-57600-000-000 WWIP-capital outlay 27,973.50
WWTF UPGRADES-FINAT, DESIGN 103387
660-00-57600-000-000 WWTP-capital outlay 553.50
WWTP Facility Plan 103386
Total 32,772.50
7/21/2020 KS State Bank
Wheel Loader - Pmt #1
100-00-58100-000-000 PRINCIPAL 26,667.56
Wheel Loader - Pmt #1 6/17/2020
100-00-58200-000-000 INTEREST 4,625.81
6/17/2020
Total 31,293.37
7/21/2020 Lakeside International Trucks
Customer #: 71767
100-00-53240-350-000 EQUIPMENT-S,M,R,E 23.25
Def 2.5, Fleetrit 53 406559Pp
Total 23.25
7/21/2020 Oostburg Concrete Products Inc.
CONCRETE FLATWORK
100-00-57220-000-000 LAKEVIEW PARK 42 ,626.78

CONCRETE FLATWORK 54085



7/17/2020 12:41 PM In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL Page: 4
ALL Checks by Payee ACCT
POOLED CHECKING (COLLINS)
Dated From: 7/21/2020 From Account:
Thru: 7/21/2020 Thru Account:
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount
Total 42,626.78
7/21/2020 Sheboygan County Treasurer
Customer #: 60028
100-00-57300-000-000 STREETS 853.48
SPOT REPAIR 111601
100-00-55211-230-000 BERTRAM PARK-S,M,R,E 8,003.73
GRADE & PAVE 111601
100-00-57300-000-000 STREETS 17,454.85
SPRING CT. MILL & PAVE 111601
Total 26,312.06
7/21/2020 Soerens-Solutions Innovative Restoration
LIBRARY DRYWALL REPAIR
100-00-55110-230-000 LIBRARY-S,M,R,E 275.89
LIBRARY DRYWALL REPAIR 1292
Total 275.89
7/21/2020 TNT Enterprises
RETAINING WALL AT LAKEVIEW PARK
100-00-57220-000-000 LAKEVIEW PARK 13,310.00
RETAINING WALL AT LAKEVIEW PARK 21103
Total 13,310.00
7/21/2020 Uline
Recycling receptacle, bags
100-00-53230-230-000 SHOP-S ,M,R,E 2,298.77
Recycling receptacle, bags 121651693
Total 2,298.77
7/21/2020 UNIFIRST CORPORATION
6/30/20
100-00-53100-325-000 UNIFORMS 12.87
6/30/20 1136019
660-00-53660-392-000 Uniforms 12.87
6/30/20 1136019
600-00-53660-392-000 Uniforms 12.87
6/30/20 1136019
100-00-53100-325-000 UNIFORMS 12.87
7/07/20 1137061



7/17/2020 12:41 PM In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL

Page: 5
ALL Checks by Payee ACCT
POOLED CHECKING (COLLINS)
Dated From: 7/21/2020 From Account:
Thru: 7/21/2020 Thru Account:
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount
600-00-53660-392-000 Uniforms 12.87
7/07/20 1137061
660-00-53660-392-000 Uniforms 12.87
7/07/20 1137061
Total 77.22

Grand Total

166,530.99



7/17/2020 12:41 PM In Progress Checks - Full Report - ALL Page: 6
ALL Checks by Payee ACCT
POOLED CHECKING (COLLINS)
Dated From: 7/21/2020 From Account:
Thru: 7/21/2020 Thru Account:
Amount

Total Expenditure from Fund # 100 - GENERAL FUND 136,023.10
Total Expenditure from Fund # 600 - WATER FUND 177.74
Total Expenditure from Fund # 660 - WASTEWATER FUND 30,330.15
Total Expenditure from all Funds 166,530.99



